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COMPANY VISION

o Be The Humber One Sportswear Manufactorer
wrs World Cass Products To Our World Class Customers
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EERTHRARRRD HEROKREZFZ2EZRZER
R-F——F=ZA=+-B EFRTEAARAFDAZEAR HBERGRES(EELBBEAPENEESRE
BEO(ESRBEGODEXVEF EEREESRBRGOHENVEE T RSANENRAAANERREA (R
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EBEHLE XA B ER 72,650,000 = 14.54

(B &)

BEmBEAA 200,000 = 0.04
BR /N8 BEXEAA 25,328,800 = 5.07
AL E BEXEAA 1,680,000 = 0.34

Mi3E : 1tk S5 % {9 H Time Easy Investment Holdings Limited ([Time Easy )55 » M Time Easy 2 S 2 TR A EF FHE LA -
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Consolidated Income Statement

DA<=
,%/T\ (=) u&ﬁﬁ
(Year ended 31 March 2011)
(BE=Z—F=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2011 2010
I E —E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(restated)
(&51)

REVENUE EERA 5 1,164,762 1,061,179
Cost of sales S E AN (889,006) (782,118)
Gross profit ESAl 275,756 279,061
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 5 21,390 4,460
Selling and distribution costs THE KD ERK AN (15,980) (12,079)
Administrative expenses TER R (122,201) (92,137)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FR%% A2 F 6 158,965 179,305
Income tax expense s i 9 (27,633) (29,396)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 72 BI#EHE A (L EE 2SR

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 10 131,332 149,909

HK cents HK cents
Bl A

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO A2 REA AEEESRER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12

Basic EK 26.3 30.0

Diluted g 26.3 30.0

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

56 Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEEHEWER

(Year ended 31 March 2011)
(BEZZ——F=A=+—HILFE)

2011 2010
—F——F —t
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(&31))
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 131,332 149,909
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) Hih2mEmuzE ()
Revaluation surplus on leasehold land and buildings ~ A& tih MIEF > B Atk 9,224 6,355
Income tax effect Frigtis 2 (3,048) (1,569)
6,176 4,786
Exchange differences on translation of FERINETS [EH =5
foreign operations 24,314 (6,387)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve upon FEEM R R B IE R B 2 KR
deregistration of subsidiaries (11,739) -
12,575 (6,387)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FEHMEEKE (XH) -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX EMRFIE 18,751 (1,601)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR AR BEEAEMN
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FEXHKEHEE
THE COMPANY 150,083 148,308

Annual Report 2011 57
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

(31 March 2011
(ZB——F=

=t—A8)

31 March 31 March 1 April
Notes 2011 2010 2009
—E——F —E-TF —EENF
M5t =A=+—A =A=+—H MH—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(&E7) (&%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= NE&E 13 577,372 301,749 304,468
Prepaid land lease payments JEfRT LR ERIE 14 77,108 60,817 63,347
Deposits e 15 12,884 43,939 2,177
Goodwill EES 16 26,112 26,112 26,112
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 693,476 432,617 396,104
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =& 18 192,249 136,254 133,916
Accounts and bills receivables TEWBER R EZE 19 81,354 156,567 190,978
Prepayments, deposits and TEFRIE « e REAER
other receivables IE 15 16,162 16,972 10,061
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBEEEEIER 20 183,037 328,135 297,423
Total current assets MEBEEME 472,802 637,928 632,378
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Accounts and bills payables FERTRR TR R 288 21 73,828 66,272 55,071
Accrued liabilities and other payables FERT BB R H M FEFRIA 23 94,164 58,435 59,667
Tax payable FERT IR 17,772 26,548 25,168
Total current liabilities mE R EAE 185,764 151,255 139,906
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 287,038 486,673 492,472
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERABNKRRBES
LIABILITIES 980,514 919,290 888,576
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIEAE 24 30,205 24,124 16,798
Net assets BEFE 950,309 895,166 871,778
EQUITY j=PN
Equity attributable to owners AAEEE AELER
of the Company
Issued capital BEITARA 25 4,997 4,997 4,997
Reserves 1 27 945,312 890,169 866,781
Total equity BEARLRE 950,309 895,166 871,778

CHUNG YUK SING

EBA

Director

BZ

58  Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARREBHE

(Year ended 31 March 2011)
(BEZZ——F=A=+—HILFE)

Share Statutory  Exchange Asset
Issued premium Capital surplus  fluctuation revaluation Retained
Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE#fT R EE Ex BE
Bz BRA RER EAGE BRREE RENRE EfhfRE BEak st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THT FHT FHT TR FHT
(Note 27) (Note 27)
(FzE27) (F¥zt27)
At 1 April 2009 R AERR
as previously reported e SRS
mA—H 4,997 472,586 (229) 13,821 73,219 20,107 287,989 872,490
Effect of changes in SHBREEZ
accounting policy 4 2.2 - - - - - - (712) (712)
At 1 April 2009 (restated) RZZETNE
mA—R(E5) 4,997 472,586* (229)* 13,821* 73,219* 20,107* 287,277* 871,778
Total comprehensive income  FE2EMFHE
for the year (restated) (E5)) = - - - (6,387) 4,786 149,909 148,308
Transfer to reserve E}%zﬁﬁ - - - 2,063 - - (2,063) -
Final 2009 dividend declared ~ EER-ZZTNF
REARS. 11 - - - - - - (59,962) (59,962)
Interim 2010 dividend —T-TEAHkRE 1 - - - - - - (64,958) (64,958)
At 31 March 2010 (restated) ~ A=ZT—ZF=FA
=+—H(&E5) 4,997 472,586* (229)* 15,884* 66,832* 24,893* 310,203* 895,166
At 1 April 2010 B2 AERR
as previously reported —T-TF
MA—A 4,997 472,586 (229) 15,884 66,832 24,893 310,653 895,616
Effect of changes in SHBEEEH
accounting policy % 22 - - - - - - (450) (450)
At 1 April 2010 (restated) RZT-—ZF
MA—B(E) 4,997 472,586 (229) 15,884 66,832 24,893 310,203 895,166
Total comprehensive income  FE 2 E K ZHEE
for the year - - - - 12,575 6,176 131,332 150,083
Transfer to reserve ER T - - - 3,976 (3,976)
Release upon deregistration S4B A RIESRER
of a subsidiary - - - (4,757) - - 4,757 -
Final 2010 dividend declared ~ EER=Z—Z%F
RERRE 1 - - - - - - (34,978) (34,979)
Interim 2011 dividend T ——FhHkRE 1 - - - - - - (59,962) (59,962)
At 31 March 2011 RZZT—F
—B=t+—H 4,997 472,586* (229)* 15,103* 79,407 31,069* 347,376* 950,309
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$945,312,000 * ZERBRBERRINGREAMBMRRERAZE

(31 March 2010: HK$890,169,000 and 1 April 2009: HK$866,781,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

f## 15 945,312,000 T ( =& —
H : 890,169,000 Tk —TF

866,781,000/87T) ©

Annual Report 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an\ IE/%UH:E%

(Year ended 31 March 2011)
(BE=Z—F=A=1+—HILFE)

Notes 2011 2010
s —B——f —=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE£BEAZHERE
Profit before tax BRA% A& A 158,965 179,305
Adjustments for: WA B F3%
Bank interest income RITRLEHA 5 (1,243) (1,653)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEK&
plant and equipment BAEIEE 2 W 5 (78) =
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries THENB ARz e 5 (18,663) =
Reversal of revaluation deficit on CEAE TR
leasehold land and buildings BFEGER 5 (501) (288)
Revaluation deficit on leasehold land HELH K
and buildings BFEHEE 6 3,900 =
Depreciation e 6 37,271 35,725
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 81 1 b 30 & R IE 5 6 2,042 1,809
181,693 214,898
Increase in inventories FEEm (55,995) (2,338)
Decrease in accounts and bills receivables FEU AR BN e R R 75,213 34,411
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, deposits BT FIE ~ 24 &
and other receivables H e E R L, (3 00) 1,013 (6,931)
Increase in accounts and bills payables FEASBRFR R R HR I8 AN 7,623 11,201
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued liabilities and EETaER
other payables H bR A0, CRlA) 37,725 (1,232)
Cash generated from operations 2EELVES 247,272 250,009
Dividends paid BERRE (94,940) (124,920)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBREH (16,181) (11,175)
Overseas tax paid BEEINRIA (11,049) (10,937)
Net cash flows from operating activities RECEEBZBEREFE 125,102 102,977
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEFBHEAZHERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, ~ HEWZE - MEM
plant and equipment, net RAEIE B TS RIBFE 115 -
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWME  BWEMEREHEE
equipment (267,956) (27,385)
Increase in deposits BeEm 15 (12,884) (43,939)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments TS A2 AH & FRIEIE N (4,282) -
Decrease in non-pledged deposits with BAREIHEBA=M@AZ
original maturity of over three months IEE TR
when acquired 20 3,443 8,754
Interest received BEUF S 1,243 1,653
Net cash flows used in investing activities AREBEESH 2 ReREFE (280,321) (60,917)

60 Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

SeRSRER (&)

(Year ended 31 March 2011)
(BHE-Z—F=A=1+—HItFE)

Notes 2011 2010
g —EB——fF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(restated)
(E31)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RE&RRESZEEREM (BL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (155,219) 42,060
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#]7R4 &IE4%EEE 324,692 285,226
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ X&)~ 225 13,564 (2,594)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRER

AT END OF YEAR RESEER 183,037 324,692
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RekFESEEERZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DT
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHET 20 183,037 324,692
Non-pledged time deposits with original BAREIHABB=EAZ

maturity of more than three months IEE R TEHFER

when acquired 20 - 3,443
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the LRE SRR TRR R Y

consolidated statement of financial position ReLHEEEIER 183,037 328,135
Less: non-pledged time deposits with original & : B ARE S HH 28

maturity of more than three months =B A ZEEHEHER
when acquired 20 - (3,443)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FEREmERMETN
consolidated statement of cash flows RekReFHEER 183,037 324,692
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Statement of
BHGHAR 3

(31 March 2011
(Z=2——F=A=+—8)

Financial Position

Notes 2011 2010
B 5E —E2——fF —ZT—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries N B AR ZEE 17 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FE UMY B A B I8 17 681,622 573,160
Prepayments SR O 15 138 134
Cash and cash equivalents RehREEEER 20 269 799
Total current assets HEBEEMAE 682,029 574,093
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities EtBE 23 452 317
Due to subsidiaries FEH B AR ZIAE 17 248,933 149,976
Total current liabilities mEaEeE 249,385 150,293
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 432,644 423,800
Net assets BEFE 476,012 467,168
EQUITY =i
Issued capital BBEITRA 25 4,997 4,997
Reserves i 27 471,015 462,171
Total equity BEARBE 476,012 467,168

CHUNG YUK SING
EE A

Director

BZE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A5 R R BT EE

(31 March 2011
(Z2——F=RA=+—H)

2 |

Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower B, Regent
Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

The Group’s principal activities are manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
buildings, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as

the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being

the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

2.1

NEEHR

ARRIRRHASBEEMKILZERA
Al o RABLZ ERBRMIAI B AR
ORI 705R R Am P LB EE N2 0902-
0903 = [ 0905-0906 % °

REBZI2EBREERETEHRK
PR e

fm | 2L 2

HEMBRRDVBREHBEGAMAE
(BB EFMAE EM 2 BENBRE
FRN([BEBFBHREER ) (AP REMR
BEEFBHREER  BEGHER(F
AEEA D REE) BEAREHR
AIRBEBRBGPI 2 RERERS - FRiZ
FARFEEI - W ERHHERERIBE
SERATERES - RS BEERI - FBR
FHUABTL(ET 25 - MAAEES
M AAERETL 2 Th -

meEE%

REVBHRREBEARTREWME QA
(BB AERDBE_2——F=A8
=T BLEFEZHBEREK - HEBRRR
SUARME MNP B®RE - ANES
BOREAR R RIS - HBAR 2%
BABKEEE - BIASRERGESEY
R AstE - WEBRESIEA LA
BRAFtA - REARBRNMABEALR
X5  EEARBHENZISMEL A
AER YR REBRRERES KA T
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(31 March 2011)
(ZZ—F=A=+—81)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest
even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)

the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)

the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit

or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated income
statement or retained profits, as appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

All of the above-mentioned requirements for consolidation from 1
April 2010 have been applied on a prospective basis. The following
differences, however, are carried forward in certain instances from the
previous basis of consolidation:

o Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest (formerly known as minority interest) until
the balance was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses
were attributable to the Company, unless the non-controlling
interest had a binding obligation to cover these. Losses prior
to 1 April 2010 were not reallocated between non-controlling
interest and the Company’s shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment
retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the
date control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment
at 1 April 2010 has not been restated.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BHIESREMIE (1)

(31 March 2011)
(Z2—&=A=+—8)

2.2

Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HKFRS 5 Amendments
included in
Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009

HK Interpretation 4
Amendment

HK Interpretation 5

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
— Plan to sell the controlling interest in a
subsidiary

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
in May 2009

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases —
Determination of the Length of Lease Term
in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of

HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised), amendments to HKAS 7

and HKAS 17 included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and HK
Interpretation 4 (Revised in December 2009), the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.

T
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AR BB AN R B RS AR B R RN IA T
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
ISR MIEE (4B)

(31 March 2011)

(—2——%=A=t+—A)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as

follows:

(a)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and HKAS 27
(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that affect the initial
measurement of non-controlling interests, the accounting

for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the accounting for
losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control
of a subsidiary. Consequential amendments were made

to various standards, including, but not limited to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21
The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards are applied
prospectively and affect the accounting of acquisitions, loss of
control and transactions with non-controlling interests after 1
April 2010.

66 Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ISR M (4)

(31 March 2011)

(Z2—F=A

=+—H)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a significant
financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the
statement of financial position can be classified as a
cash flow from investing activities.

o HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance on
classifying land as a lease. As a result, leases of land
should be classified as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with the general guidance in
HKAS 17.

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of
the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases
is revised as a consequence of the amendment to HKAS 17
Leases included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009. Following
this amendment, the scope of HK Interpretation 4 has been
expanded to cover all land leases, including those classified

as finance leases. As a result, this interpretation is applicable
to all leases of property accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 16, HKAS 17 and HKAS 40.

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BATE SRR ()

(31 March 2011)

(Z2—%=A=+—1)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

68

(Continued)

The Group has reassessed its leases in Hong Kong, previously
classified as operating leases, upon the adoption of the
amendments. As substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with the leases in Hong Kong have been
transferred to the Group, the leases in Hong Kong have been
reclassified from operating leases under “prepaid land lease
payments” to finance leases under “property, plant and
equipment”. The corresponding amortisation has also been
reclassified to depreciation. The effects of the above changes
are summarised below:

2.2

S BERRIEERE (4

(b)

s

(#8)

RIRAZEBR - AEESHHT
HEZAIEDBAREHENTS
HE - ANBEBHEMS R 2BA
BHREBRKEREERAAER
WEBHRENR TN T ETE]
WELHESI A ME  BER
RIBIOEERE - B - HBES
BIENED BITE o LB ENE
2T

2011 2010
—B——fF —T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Consolidated income statement for the year — A=& iz 7%
ended 31 March BE=HA=+—HIFFE
Decrease in amortisation of prepaid land lease T8/ 4 +b 0 & sk 1B # 5405
payments 309 309
Increase in depreciation of property, plant and  ¥% - &= &
equipment BB (296) (288)
Reversal of revaluation deficit on leasehold EEEE TR
land and buildings BFEHEER 501 288
Income tax effect ISR (83) (47)
431 262
2011 2010
—E——F = —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Consolidated statement of comprehensive A EE KK
income for the year ended 31 March BE=HA=+—HIFFZE
Increase in revaluation surplus on leasehold HETH R
land and buildings BFEHAMRIEIN 5,295 -
Income tax effect FriSTie 2 (874) -
4,421 -

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BTESRE M ()

(31 March 2011)
(Z2—&=A=+—8)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures
(Continued)

B RERREESE (0

(b) (Continued) (b) (%)
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
—E2——-F5 ZT-TF ZTTNF
=A=+—-8 =ZA=+—H mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FAT
Consolidated statement of financial BEMBRILE
position
Increase in property, plant and VI~ BB SR
equipment 16,700 11,200 11,200
Decrease in non-current portion of JEBNHAER D 2
prepaid land lease payments TEfT Lt AE & FRIER (11,115) (11,424) (11,733)
Decrease in current portion of prepaid 5+ ATERNFIE « 28 K&
land lease payments included in E b R R TE M BN R ER 10
prepayments, deposits and 2 TBA LA ERIE R
other receivables (309) (309) (309)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax FRERIEEE
liabilities (38 0) (874) 83 130
4,402 (450) (712)
Increase in asset revaluation reserve A EEGHFHEEM 4,421 - -
Decrease in retained profits Biraflmd (19) (450) (712)
4,402 (450) (712)

Due to the retrospective application of the amendments which
has resulted in the restatement of items in the consolidated
statement of financial position, a consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2009, and the related notes
affected by the amendments have been presented in these
financial statements.

mNEWERZEER] - R MER
MRPIABAED - Ak =TT AEFN
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Z BRI 25INZE I HFRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BHIESREMIEE (1)

(31 March 2011)
(—2——%=A=t+—A)

2.3

70

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment  Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-
time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adpoters3

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets 3

Financial Instruments 5

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets*
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 2
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010, whereas the
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 13 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011 although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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lﬂotestolﬁnarmjalStatenwents(contnwued)
B ISR M (4)

(31 March 2011)
(Z2—F=A=+—A8)

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
“ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations from 1 April 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances

and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

2.3
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(31 March 2011)
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Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Business combinations from 1 April 2010 (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition

date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date through
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be
remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group'’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration

and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination

is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Business combinations from 1 April 2010 (Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included
in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010 but after 1 April 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied to
business combinations prior to 1 April 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest was
measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not affect
previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract by the acquiree were not reassessed on
acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modified the cash flows
that otherwise would have been required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group
had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely than
not and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent adjustments
to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of

the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BHIESREMIE (1)
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii)
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(@ the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;
(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and

any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it

is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset

basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any

subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases  Over the lease terms

Buildings 2% 10 15%
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 20%,
whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and 20%
motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the income statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills receivables and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement — Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed

or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees

or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in
the income statement in finance costs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence

of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)

and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is

a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If
a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and bills payables and
other payables.
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Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement — Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or

dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price

for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair value is
determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; and a discounted cash flow analysis.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on the rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure incurred
in the construction cost of an infrastructure project, are recognised at
their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over
the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the income statement by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the sale of goods and samples, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(ii) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Employee benefits

Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions

are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries

and are charged to the income statement as they become payable

in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

In addition, the Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions

to the Retirement Scheme are charged to the income statement as
incurred. The Retirement Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF
Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the Retirement Scheme
before his/her interest in the Group’s employer contributions vests
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group are reduced by
the relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated

by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required

to make contributions for their employees who are registered as
permanent residents in Mainland China. The contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling

at the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of

the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has

to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly

in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the
asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the net present value of future cash flows, which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could have
a material effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of leasehold land and buildings of the Group
As described in note 13, the leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at the end of the reporting period on a market value existing
state basis by independent professional valuers. Such valuations

were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgements, the Group considers information from current prices in
an active market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2011 was HK$26,112,000 (2010: HK$26,112,000). More details are
set out in note 16.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of accounts and bills receivables.
Allowances are applied to accounts and bills receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group determines that there are five
reportable operating segments, based on location of customers (the
destination of sales), including Mainland China, Europe, the United
States of America (the “USA"), Japan and others. There segments are
managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and returns
that are different from each other.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest and
other unallocated income, and unallocated expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

EEGRHIE R AAE o

At Z T REM ()

B E
rEEGVEFEEHESE A MAE -
ETRAGTEEMESRZESELS
Lz EAEE - - HEHEREERR AR
AMFTReELBNMELEZBHARE
ERE C MEARESBEMRAEK  UEFTE
ZERSREZHAE BER T ——F
= A=+—HBZRME{ER26,112,000/87T
(ZZ—F% :26,112,00087T) - EZE
RHEFHIRE16 -

REBRIEY RIS N FEE 2 Tl E 1%
AHEBLRBR(F R E RS - A S5
B BB EART BEEEW TR - 2 HE
WERS R RIBE LR - BAIREFRE
FAFIEN R b 5T - HERRERICR KA R
FEAMEAREA - BHEEEBEHAE
BN 2 EGRIE R R RS 8E,B B 2 AR
HEBRTE -

RETHESR

HREBME - AEBATFAEL(HE
Bryi) RER  BELETRSEES
B REPEAE  BUM - EFERERE
([EE)) - BAREMIEER - ZEHEE
[\ A= A R R B A 3 JR B D e
2 o

EEEBUERAERLEDE  UEIE
HEBERDBERRRFEENRE - D8R
R TRBE AT IR E 2 RN FFE - A &R
SO RREN AL FHEREAVENFE -
KRR TRADEN W 87 N EBAKE R
HATEAN 8T A8 EBREFTEL T
FEAFE - bR D EWAR KRR X
&

DREETBRANEEE  REAZZE
BERSEERE-

Annual Report 2011 89
TR



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B EREMISE ()

(31 March 2011)
(Z2—%=A=+—H)

4. Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these liabilities are

&K
= =3

EAEER ®)

PRAETNERERANERE  REZZE

,H]]

managed on a group basis. BEEREER -
Group - 2011 NEE-—FE——5F
Mainland
China Europe USA Japan Others Consolidated
R KR BN ES B Hirp & &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TR TR T

Segment revenue: PEEEWA

Sales to external custorners HETHAER 391304 312857 167,195 9133 199273 1,164,762
Segment results NEEE 59,114 70,473 29,216 16,288 36,668 211,759
Interest and other unallocated income ¥ 8 REMRAEUA 21,390
Unallocated expenses ARE S (74,184)
Profit before tax BB AT 158,965
Income tax expense FraRiEY (27,633)
Profit for the year attributable to KREEBA

owners of the Company eI E R 131,332
Segment assets PEEE 204,223 191,159 143,603 33,184 129,400 701,569
Unallocated assets ROBEE 464,709

1,166,278
Segment liabilities HERE 75,811 21,776 21,050 3,995 22,286 150,918
Unallocated liabilities KHEAE 65,051
215,969

Other segment information: HitH %4

Depreciation and amortisation E R 8,281 7,277 4,179 1,909 4,498 26,744

Unallocated amounts FOEEE 12,569

39,313
Capital expenditure * BARX 6,760 7,552 6,650 1,468 4,965 27,395
Unallocated amounts Pl 287,007
314,402

* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment * BARSIREDE BERRENRER

and prepaid land lease payments.

90  Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
&= (BIRR)IZ=RAR L

BN L AERR -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Operating Segment Information (Continued) 4, REFTBWER @
Group — 2010 (restated) rEE-—Z-ZF(F5))
Mainland
China Europe USA Japan Others ~ Consolidated
REIARE B e BA EiiR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Ti#x Ti#x TiEx
Segment revenue: PREERA
Sales to external customers HETINREP 429,056 190,793 139,743 122,537 179,050 1,061,179
Segment results PEREE 82,025 50,085 27,757 25,386 44,362 229,615
Interest and other unallocated income .8 R E R D EMA 4,460
Unallocated expenses KRR (54,770)
Profit before tax BB AR 179,305
Income tax expense RS (29,396)
Profit for the year attributable to AAFAEEA
owners of the Company LR 149,909
Segment assets NEEE 287,848 114,506 87,558 44,631 127,370 661,913
Unallocated assets FOREE 408,632
1,070,545
Segment liabilities PEER 73,962 19,391 14,576 6,651 26,082 140,662
Unallocated liabilities *oEafkE 34,717
175,379
Other segment information: HibHEER
Depreciation and amortisation EREHE 12,512 4,433 2,980 3,574 4777 28,276
Unallocated amounts FOELE 9,258
37,534
Capital expenditure * EREY* 5,729 7,821 7,074 1,349 3,215 25,188
Unallocated amounts o) ey ] 4374
29,562
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and equipment. * BEARFASREDE  BERRBEORE -
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4.

92

Operating Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information — non-current assets

HEEHN - FRBEE

2011 2010

—E——F —EEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(restated)

(&E51)

Hong Kong a5 40,371 28,099
Mainland China IEpN S 582,738 376,869
Indonesia ENE 70,367 27,649
693,476 432,617

The non-current asset information above is based on the location of
assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$559,874,000 (2010: HK$533,946,000) and
HK$203,329,000 (2010: HK$263,270,000) were derived from sales
to the largest customer and the second largest customer of the Group
respectively. The above amounts include sales to group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these customers.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited

& (BB R AR

ERERBEERR RREEMELERS

DEF -

EBEXEEFNESR
REBREFE—RFE_AREFLNIEERS
BEIWA DR A559,874,0008 L ( —ZF—
Z 4 : 533,946,000 7T ) }203,329,000
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5.

Revenue, Other Income and Gains

5. HEXRWA - HtAR W&

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net EEIWARNAKRER 2 LR - THENBRIE
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade ENBSMHEEEERZIREFE - N
discounts. All significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated SERAREMMBEEARSGERGERAR
on consolidation. #1384 o
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as AREFEZWA « AR Z DT
follows: Ol
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue EERA
Sale of goods EMiNE 1,164,762 1,061,179
Other income Hg A
Bank interest income RITRLEMA 1,243 1,653
Others HAth 905 2,519
2,148 4,172
Gains Wzt
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 28)  FF#HMIEB A Al 2 Yk (FH:+28) 18,663 -
Reversal of revaluation deficit on leasehold land B & + i MAEFE(HERE
and buildings 501 288
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand HEWE - MELREHER 2 W=
equipment 78 -
19,242 288
Other income and gains HA Mg A R g 21,390 4,460
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6. Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

6.

BRE AR R

NEBMBRBALEF R, (GTA) THE
5

2011 2010

—B——fF =TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHT FHIT

(restated)

(E31))

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 889,006 782,118
Auditors’ remuneration ZHEM S 1,743 1,320
Depreciation (Note 13)* e (fzE13)* 37,271 315,725

BN LA E KR (M E14)>

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

(Note 14)* 2,042 1,809
Employee benefits expenses (excluding directors’ & B4&F|Z £ (MBI ESEE —
remuneration — Note 7): MizE7)
Wages and salaries TER¥F® 218,953 173,649
Pension scheme contributions RIS EHEIHR
(defined contribution schemes) (EEft 2D 15,976 11,271
Less: Forfeited contributions B BRI (105) (102)
Net pension scheme contributions RINE T EIHFOFER 15,871 11,169
Total employee benefits expenses* R ERAZ > 234,824 184,818
Minimum lease payments under operating leases +ith MIEFKLIHE 7 XA S
in respect of land and buildings* INE N 2,959 2,636
Foreign exchange differences, net WEH ZRRFEE 5,027 1,722
Revaluation deficit on leasehold land and HE T REFEGEIE*
buildings** 3,900 -
i Included in the respective balances are the following amounts which are 2 BIEARTEEATFALHECDE
also included in the cost of inventories sold disclosed above: TFERARZ &
2011 2010
—g——% e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Depreciation e 24,709 24,320
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEfT L 4030 E R IEH: 8 1,608 1,384
Employee benefits expenses EE/FXH 186,325 143,615
Minimum lease payments under operating leases T REFREHREY
in respect of land and buildings SRS 2,91 2,544
Y Revaluation deficit on leasehold land and buildings is included under o HELHREFEHBEEFTAKRRRA

“administrative expenses” on the face of the income statement.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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(31 March 2011)

(Z2—F=A=+—8H)

7. Directors’ Remuneration 7.

EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

AEEEENERETEMERIHPER
ARELH LR ERRA D REER

BHEBIZE 161 IR T ¢

Group

rEE
2011 2010
= —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees we 360 360

Other emoluments: HibM<

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDER 3,224 5,081
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAT 8,829 6,619
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHI 241 203
12,294 11,903
12,654 12,263

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

FANTEILFNTES 2R

the year were as follows: T
2011 2010
—g-—F ——
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho PREZEE 120 120
Mr. Li Chi Chung ZRE0TA L 1 120 120
Mr. Cheng Yung Hui, Tony BPEEIB A 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2010: Nil).

FAVERBERNBIIFNTES
ZHE(ZB—FF 8-
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7. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 7. EEMEw)
(b)  Executive directors (b) HITEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2R RBike
we ENEA [ TEIHR B&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT FET FERT
2011 —B2—-F
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEFLE - 1,664 3,963 124 5,751
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BN EE - 1,560 3,530 117 5,207
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu BRFE - - 668 - 668
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina ~ FRF5 %4+ - - 668 - 668
- 3,224 8,829 241 12,294
2010 “Z-TF
Executive directors: WiTEE:
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing BEALE - 1,664 4,558 89 6,311
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying FUN-7 S - 1,560 2,061 84 3,705
Ms. Chen Li Ying BREF T - 182 - 10 192
Ms. Tsang Sau Fan BERTL - 182 - 10 192
Mr. Chen Zhen Hao BREREAE - 4 - - 41
Mr. Chang Wen Hsiang RIFELAE - 182 - 10 192
Mr. Kuo Tai Yu PR %E - 635 - = 635
Ms. Chen Fang Mei, Christina B4+ - 635 - - 635
- 5,081 6,619 203 11,903
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or NEFALBAAESREXRENET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. A& 2 2B ©
The directors’ remuneration shown above does not include P RE E S IR B E A R
the estimated monetary value of the Group’s owned premise TEFEEALERELAHANEAERE
provided rent-free to an executive director, Mr. Chung Yuk BEWMEZEABE - BHE_T——F=
Sing, during the year. The estimated rental value of such AR=+—RILEE  ZEBZHAHEE
accommodation was HK$112,000 (2010: HK$100,000) for 73112,00078 7L (—E—Z4 : 100,000
the year ended 31 March 2011. TT) ©

96 Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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8.  Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2010:

two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2010:
three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year ended 31
March 2011 are set out below:

hERESHFMES

FA- hEEEHFHEEEEMA(ZF
—TF:MREF  ARRSHMNF
BEELXHMETRE - REE—T——
FZA=T—RLEFER #RT=R(=
T-2F: ZR)RMEeNFEZRE
MBS BT

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REEREWET 3,900 3,355
Discretionary bonuses [l 1,750 1,994
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEHEIHER 297 185
5,947 5,534

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeN TUTHEENSETHEESRES
MEEMT :

Number of employees

EEHA
2011 2010
— —TFF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/&7C 21,500,000/ 70 - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001787C 22,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001787C%2,500,00078 7T 1 1
3 3
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

WECLZE)BFRABPRAT (“YM (Shantou)”) and ¥4 & (J1LZE)
FIXAERAE ("YY (Shantou)”) are entitled to be exempted from
corporate income tax in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
for the first two profit-making years and a 50% reduction in corporate
income tax for the succeeding three years. Moreover, under the
relevant tax laws and regulations in Mainland China, these companies
may set off losses incurred by them in a financial year against profits
made by them in the succeeding financial year or years, subject to a
maximum of five financial years.

According to the confirmation obtained by the Group from the PRC
tax bureau, the first profit-making year of YY (Shantou) was the year
ended 31 December 2005 and the first profit-making year of YM
(Shantou) was the year ended 31 December 2007.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the “PRC Tax Law") which took effect on 1 January 2008. The
PRC income tax rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises. The State
Council of the PRC passed an implementation guidance note (the
“Implementation Guidance”) on 26 December 2007, which sets
out details of how the existing preferential income tax rates will be
adjusted to the standard rate of 25%.

For enterprises which were established before the publication of

the PRC Tax Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of a
reduced corporate income tax rate (“CIT rate”) granted by relevant
tax authorities, the CIT rate might be gradually increased from the
preferential rate to 25% within 5 years after the effective date of the
PRC Tax Law on 1 January 2008. For the regions that enjoy a reduced
CIT rate at 15%, the rate would gradually increase to 20% for 2009,
22% for 2010, 24% for 2011 and 25% for 2012 according to the
grandfathering rules stipulated in the Implementation Guidance and
related circular. Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions
or reductions from the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may
continue to enjoy such treatment until the fixed term expires.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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EBFGHAENEDTBEENGHER
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SB) DAl EHRCEMERMFENFEA
RAMB([HE ) EEMEN  ARER
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Mo Lol - RIBA BRI P BARRERBAR
BRI ZERRAER AV REREE
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E
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9. Income Tax (Continued) 9. FiE¥(m)
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(&B%)
Current tax charge for the year: AEEHEBIES N ¢
Hong Kong BB 17,711 14,545
Elsewhere Hihi s 7,926 8,556
Underprovision/(Overprovision) of current tax in @& 4 fE BIHAT B AEH 2,
respect of prior years (BEER ) (3,596) 391
Deferred (Note 24) IRIE(PH5T24) 5,592 5,904
Total tax charge for the year REEHIESL 48R 27,633 29,396

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rates for the tax jurisdictions in which the Company
and majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the

SRR AR RR R EAE D M8 A RALE
MBS BLA A E R R B Z R AT
MzBAXHERERREAE 2 HIAR

effective tax rates is as follows: X2 BT
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(restated)
(B%)
Profit before tax FR A A& A 158,965 179,305
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in the tax IEEBARE R AEREEFERZ
jurisdictions concerned TEAE A 30,853 35,835
Lower tax rate due to tax holiday B BRI 2 BIEHER (6,603) (13,052)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of FBEFEREARIEE L AR
previous years (3.596) 391
Income not subject to tax AR Z A (6,131) (1,389)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHEFR 2 B 2,565 688
Effect of withholding tax at 5% and 10% NEAEE 2 HEKEAF
on the distributable profits of the Group’s A 93K 4 F1)5 % M
PRC subsidiaries 10%ENH 2 & 5,185 5,384
Others HAith 5,360 1,539
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAREBERMEGE 2 BIES 27,633 29,396
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10.

11.

12.

100

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of 10. AATHEBEAEGFERR
the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Bz —_Z——4F=ZA=+—HItFE
year ended 31 March 2011 includes a profit of HK$103,784,000 (2010: RAABBEAEAREREE &N E R
HK$65,001,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements #) 103,784,000 8 L ( = T — T 4F
of the Company (Note 27). 65,001,000 70) + ERAR BB ISR
MR (H5E27) ©
Dividends 1. BRE
2011 2010
—E——fF —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends paid during the year FREMKE
Final in respect of the financial year ended 31 BHE-_ZT-ZTF=A=+—HL
March 2010 — HK7 cents per ordinary share BIBF SRR B — SRR T mAk
(2010: final dividend of HK12 cents per TEW(ZE—ZF  HEZTT
ordinary share, in respect of the financial year NE=ZA=+T—HBLEHBFER
ended 31 March 2009) HR B R AR 1 27840L) 34,978 59,962
Interim — HK12 cents (2010: HK13 cents) per A HR — AR AR 1 2781
ordinary share (ZZ—ZF 13781) 59,962 64,958
94,940 124,920
Proposed final dividends BRAREIE — SR mAR3E
HK3 cents (2010: HK7 cents) per ordinary share  (ZZ—Z4F : 77(l) 14,990 34,978

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the number of
shares in issue as at the reporting date, and is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the dividend
payable.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Owners of
the Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit

for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year of
HK$131,332,000 (2010: HK$149,909,000), and 499,680,000 (2010:
499,680,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In both 2011 and 2010, diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share due to the absence of dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the two years.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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12.

RERZ KRR ETIRNRER D E
TIRMEBEFE - WAFARBRRNE
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BRI ERRENIE
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F 1 149,909,000 7T) * A RFARD E
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13.

Property, Plant and Equipment

13. X -BERRE

Group i
31 March 2011 —B2——=H=+—H
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor  Construction
buildings improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE HE RE-£8.
THREETF MELEE BERRE RERAE KEIRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER TER TER TER
(restated) (restated)
(E50) (E5l)
Cost or valuation: A A (E :
At beginning of year £ 212,574 69,106 132,770 45,849 - 460,299
Additions NE 48,159 25,057 13,878 7,805 203,123 298,022
Disposals & - - - (1,120) - (1,120)
Written off g - (263) (1,531) (1,649) - (3,443)
Revaluation A (219) - - - - (219)
Exchange realignment ELAE 6,790 2,161 3,276 928 - 13,155
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
o R el = 267,304 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 766,694
Accumulated depreciation: ZENE:
At beginning of year E1 - 43,009 83,261 32,280 - 158,550
Provided during the year ERRE 6,044 14,698 9,909 6,620 - 37,27
Disposals HE - - - (1,083) - (1,083)
Written off ik - (263) (1,531) (1,649) - (3.443)
Write-back on revaluation B[O (6,044) - - - - (6,044)
Exchange realignment XA - 1,454 1,875 742 - 4,071
At 31 March 2011 RZET——4F
=ZR=t+—-H - 58,898 93,514 36,910 - 189,322
Net book value: REFME:
At31 March 2011 RZZ-——%
“A=1+-8 267,304 37,163 54,879 14,903 203,123 577,372
Analysis of cost or valuation: B A 3 i B 2 4 :
At cost BHAE - 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 499,390
At 31 March 2011 valuation BRR-_Z2——F
=R=t+-H
2@ 267,304 - - - - 267,304
267,304 96,061 148,393 51,813 203,123 766,694
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13.

102

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

13. ME - BEEKRE®S

Group rE
31 March 2010 —BE-BFE=ZHA=+-—8H
Furniture,
fixtures,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold Plant and and motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
ME HE KR KB
THREF NERE HKEREE REBERAE EEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THEL THEL FET TAL THET
(restated) (restated)
(E5) (&31)
Cost or valuation: YN R
At beginning of year 1 213,865 53,601 125,564 40,985 - 434,015
Additions NE - 16,031 8,383 5,148 - 29,562
Surplus on revaluation BB 908 = = = = 908
Exchange realignment R (2,199) (526) (1177) (284) = (4,186)
At 31 March 2010 RZ_E-FF
=R=+—H 212,574 69,106 132,770 45,849 - 460,299
Accumulated depreciation: ZEME:
At beginning of year E1 = 31,975 72,471 25,101 = 129,547
Provided during the year EREE 5,735 11,327 11,312 7,351 - 35,725
Write-back on revaluation Efh [ # (5,735) - - - - (5,735)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (293) (522) (172) - (987)
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE-FF
=A=+—H = 43,009 83,261 32,280 - 158,550
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2010 RZIE-FF
“A=1+-8 212,574 26,097 49,509 13,569 - 301,749
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
mA—A 213,865 21,626 53,093 15,884 - 304,468
Analysis of cost or valuation: B AR sk (B 2 17
At cost BRARE - 69,106 132,770 45,849 - 247,725
At 31 March 2010 valuation R-E-ZF
=A=t+-81
PALY: 212,574 - - - - 212,574
212,574 69,106 132,770 45,849 - 460,299

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13. ME -BERXE®H

B

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings at net carrying amounts
included above are held under the following lease terms:

EXBEREOAEEBEE L1 RBFR
ERFERATHORS

2011 2010

—E-——fF —

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FHET

(restated)

(E7)

Medium term leases in Hong Kong BEAPHBELD 26,000 20,000
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong S ASNR EAFE 4D 238,551 190,029
Long term leases outside Hong Kong BB AN BT A 2,753 2,545
267,304 212,574

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued individually
at 31 March 2011 by Greater China Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate open market value of
HK$267,304,000, based on their existing use. Revaluation surpluses
of HK$9,224,000 and HK$501,000, resulting from the above
revaluation, were credited to the statement of other comprehensive
income and the income statement, respectively. Revaluation deficit
of HK$3,900,000 was charged to the income statement. The

effect of the total net revaluation surplus of HK$5,825,000 was
reflected as decrease of valuation of property, plant and equipment
of HK$219,000 and write-back of accumulated depreciation of
HK$6,044,000.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been HK$232,170,000 (2010: HK$183,223,000).

As at 31 March 2011, one of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a net book value of HK$847,000 (2010: HK$818,000) has been
provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director of the
Company during the year (Note 14).

AREB 2HELTHWREFABILE
XAERGHEMEETEABR A A
R-_ZTE——FE=ZfA=+—H%KHE
BRAENAHMEEEBIFGL 6
{£267,304,000% JT o it & {4 BT & A&
& i & #9,224,0007% JT & 501,0007%
TAIDRIEFAH M 2ER=EE &K
%% & » = 14 F5 483,900,000 T 5 A K
77k o B h B R 8% §85,825,0007% T
IRNERBMRYE BEREEHMG
Bk 42219,000/8 T KL Bl # 2 &
6,044,00078 JC °

WEBBEETHREBFRESL K
ABEBFTENR EREAERE
%232,170,000% T( = T — T F:
183,223,000/ 7T) °

R-TE——F=A=+—H &K&EH
Hh—IER®EFE847,0008 T(==F
— T F:818,000 L) 2 HE L i &
BFEFREFREHRTAQRA —BHITE
EERBEBMHIFE14) -

Annual Report 2011 103
TR



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BATE SRR ()

(31 March 2011)
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14. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

14. BN THHEERE

Group
rE
2011 2010
—Z2——F —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
(restated)
(E7)
Carrying amount at beginning of year (restated) 4 ¥R E{E (E 7)) 62,626 65,176
Additions NE 16,380 -
Amortisation recognised during the year REREREN(EY) (M E6)

(restated) (Note 6) (2,042) (1,809)
Exchange realignment [E 5 8 =8 2,186 (741)
Carrying amount at 31 March (restated) R=A=+—B2ZEEEAE?]) 79,150 62,626
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATEMRIA ke R EMmER

deposits and other receivables (Note 15) KIE 2 BNER & & (Kt 3£ 15) (2,042) (1,809)
Non-current portion 3k B HA 56 o 77,108 60,817

An analysis of the carrying amounts of prepaid land lease payments of

RBERR  AKEEN L EEK

the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HERBMEI>NOT
2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
(restated)
(%)
Long term leases outside Hong Kong EERIINZREBAEY 3,343 3,330
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong BEBEIIN 2P HELY 75,807 59,296
79,150 62,626

One of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a net book value
of HK$ 1,588,000 (2010: HK$1,561,000) in aggregate have been
provided as rent-free accommodation to an executive director of the
Company during the year (Note 13).

104 Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
&= (BB B R R A

AN £ B H A — 75 B8R M )F B 1,588,000 75
(= ZF — T :1,561,000/ 7T) 2 T8
Nt HAERERFRRBEERAAR
ARAl—BATEEZRAEEME
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(31 March 2011)
(Z2——&%=A=+—8)

15. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

15. %E{TEI%TXIE T RERHEMER

MIE
Group Company
x5 LN
Notes 2011 2010 2011 2010
it 3% —E--F ZT-TF —E-—f —Z-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTaER FAET TERT TER
(restated)
(&350
Prepaid land lease payments BT HAEFRE 14 2,042 1,809 - -
Deposit paid for the land use right F AT ENE &9 1 3 58 AR
in Indonesia (the “Indonesia Site") E(MERLNEZESE ) - 27,649 - -
Deposit paid for the land use right in YRPEIRS
Jiangxi Province, the PRC #) 3 00 A
(the "Jiangxi Site") (IEAM)ES (i) - 12,098 - -
Deposit paid for construction projects SROI A RS
in the Jiangxi Site IRES® 9,602 - - -
Deposits for property, plant and BNE BER
equipment FEINERES 3,282 4,192 - -
Prepayments BRRE 8,656 7,221 138 134
Deposits and other receivables Re I H YRR 5,464 7,942 - -
29,046 60,911 138 134
Current portion included in prepayments, & ¥ fE T8 1 B - 184
deposits and other receivables REMEYHIEN
ENER S & (16,162) (16,972) (138) (134)
Non-current portion FEENEE o 12,884 43,939 - -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

P EEY EARHKRE - BEAEN
tREFREESHANTREE TH
I 8 R RAC 8 o

Notes: Wt &

(i) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Group and an (i) BEAEEER-EZBYE=HF N
independent third party on 10 February 2010, the Group has agreed to T-ZEF_RATBETMNH—IER
acquire two pieces of land with a total land area of approximately 125,400 FOAEEREREREBEI4ELD
square metres at Banten Province, Indonesia (the “Indonesia Project”), at fE f& (#926,335,000% 1) W B8 = ED B
a total consideration of Rp. 31.4 billion (approximately HK$26,335,000). BAB(HEBEADA T HEBELD
The consideration has been fully paid by the Group and the balance as 125,400 F 75 >K &) R 1@ 3th [Z o 7N &
at 31 March 2010 represented the consideration paid of HK$26,335,000 KERHEINTREBE ZER-_Z—
and the related tax payment of HK$1,314,000. During the year, the Group ZEZA=ZF+—-HWERRBANRK
has obtained the respective land title certificates and the balance was 826,335,000/ 7t X B B 1B &
transferred to leasehold land and buildings accordingly. 1,314,000/ 7T« AE B R F NG F

BETHMMARE HHREBREHEED
HE RgF -

(ii) Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Group and the People’s
Government of Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, the PRC (the “Yifeng (ii) BWEASERPETIRAEETEEA
Government”) on 22 January 2010, the Group agreed to acquire a 50-year REBRR(EEBRNDIR-_E—FF—
land use rights of a piece of land located in Yifeng County, Jiangxi Province, AZ+ZBIUMN—BiH#E A&
the PRC (the “Jiangxi Project”), at a consideration of RMB10.6 million B ZE &K E AR #10,600,0007T (4
(approximately HK$12.1 million), which is for production use with a total 12,100,000 7o) W BE G2 A R BT A
land area of approximately 177,500 square meters and had been paid by HE2H(IAERD) -SRI EmE
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2010. The land title certificate #)177,500F 75 K #) — i £ #1505 &Y
was obtained during the year and the balance was transferred to prepaid THERARE RIEEEZA - K%
land lease payments accordingly. ERBEE-T—THF=A=+—H1

FEBHINZRE  TRFANRE
TP AEE MESREBZIEEN
FE T LA E KA -
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16.

17.

106

Goodwill 16. BB
2011 2010
= —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET
Cost and carrying amount: ERAERREE :

At beginning and end of year REFERFEK 26,112 26,112
The Group’s goodwill was wholly allocated to a cash-generating unit REB L HE>BENREEHRL
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear and garments K 2% ;F FEEEHESEESBEMIRZ
(the “Unit"”). The recoverable amount of the Unit has been determined BADeoZBEM A KE S % HIEE
from the value in use, which is calculated with reference to cash flow ﬁ )EFJ {f BET MEBEMEIE })‘é EEI
projections based on a five-year period financial budgets approved T AESBH T AFHBTEER
by senior management. The financial budgets are prepared reflecting iﬁ ;ﬂu 2 HeEREFE -BEREEZ fﬁ
actual and prior year performance and development expectations. The ERMER - BFXRBEREHEE -
key assumptions for the cash flow projections are the budgeted gross ReReBlzIERRAEMEE 2
margin which is the average gross profit margin achieved in the year ERER(NBEBEEEMZEERN
immediately before budgeted years and the discount rate of 11.46%, EN T FHYEREK) KEELEIE E11.46%
which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating to the Unit. The (ThBEA M RMREZEN AR 2R
cash flow projections are prepared based on the assumption that the E J—L ) B RS REREBERESE
cash-generating unit will have revenue based on the actual sales order BAIEERKZINBRES 2B
amount and revenue forecast by the head of the sales department )7] BlETRIHETES gg s e
for the first year, then maintain a 30% growth rate in revenue for the ?E ERYEMENKZTER  HE R
second year, 20% for the third year and 5% for the succeeding two —EHBEI0%WREER E=F
years. The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in any 20% R 2% MWESY - & HF 1-‘ £ {a]
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount ZEBREUEEEBHER 228 &
of the Unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the TeEngEM s EERBEBE &
recoverable amount of the Unit is higher than its carrying amount, the WeE 4 E - ARZEMYAkE4ZE
directors consider there was no impairment of the goodwill at the end EREEEHE BEEZANREHEK
of the reporting period. PHEWE L IEREME-

Investments in Subsidiaries 17. RHBATZIRE
Company
KT
2011 2010
—®B—-—fF —ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Unlisted investments, at cost ELEMRE RKAE 43,368 43,368
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and HEBARZEHRAEERER 28K
repayable on demand. BEEREE-

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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17.

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries, would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

RKE QR ZRE®

TRINEARAFRHBAR  REEE

B
17.
ARAE ZER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AHAKEEFANERA

BEARFEYUBRASEEEFEL
TERD REFZARBR FHIE
M BARENKEEREBN TR -

TEMBARFEBEHOT:

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity attributable
registration and issued share/paid-up to the Company
operations registered capital AQRFAERET I

Name MR, BR CRTRAEME 2011 2010 Principal activities

NRER REEHE BRAMER —=— -5 —T-FTF FTEEH

Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; 100 100 Investment holding

EEX(EX&E)ERAA & Non-voting deferred BEER

HK$10,000 (Note (a))
Limk2ET
ERFERTKR
10,0008 7T (fff 7 (a))

BEOLB)EKRER A PRC/Mainland China US$23,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
(M 0L DG D) RE R E KR 23,500,000 3 7T of sportswear and
("YM (Shantou)"”) (Note (b)) garments

HKERBEEEYR
RAR

WECUE)HXKER DA PRC/Mainland China HK$15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
(T ECILEE) ) (7 (b)) RE R KR 15,000,0003% 7T of sportswear and
("YY (Shantou)") (Note (b)) garments

HKERBEEEYR
RAR
Eagle Nice Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading
EXEEARADA B 15T of sportswear and
garments
HKERBEEEYR
RAR
Yue Mei (HK) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading
WEBEB)EXBERRAF B 15T of sportswear and
garments
HKERBEEEYR
RAR
Maitex (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
BEH(EXEE)ERAF B 1,000/ 7t of sportswear and

garments
EEREBEEDR
RAER
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17. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 17. RMBARIZRE®W)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value of equity attributable
registration and issued share/paid-up to the Company
operations registered capital AAFFAERET DL
Name HMAYL BB BRTKRGEE 2011 2010 Principal activities
NRAEB REXHE HREEMELR -5 —ZT-ZTF FBEH
BRERBEXARRAT PRC/Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
(M 2R 3 1) (B 55 (b)) FRE K R 40,000,000 7T of sportswear and
("Maitex PRC") (Note (b)) garments
SEREBEHR
R &K
King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Manufacture and trading
tE(EXEE)ERAA B 1758 T of sportswear and
garments
SEREBEHR
&S
SEOLE)ZEXERAD A PRC/Mainland China US$2,680,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
([& B CLEE)]) (M 3% (b)) RE R EARE 2,680,000 T of sportswear and
("KE (Shantou)”) (Note (b)) garments
SEREBEEDR
KK
BEREEREHEXERRAA PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
((EREE] K D) E A EN 4,000,000 7T of sportswear and
(“Hung Eagle Garment") garments
(Note (b)) FSEREEEDR
KK
Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Holdings Ltd  Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
EXENE)ERERA A e 18T REZRK
PT. Eagle Nice Indonesia Indonesia US$6,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
("EN Indonesia”) B 6,000,000 7T of sportswear and
([ExH/e]) garments
FEREBEEDR
KR
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BXOIR)HEXBERAR B 10,0007 7T REZK
BEX(ELRXKARAA PRC/Mainland China US$21,490,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading
((EX(EE)])(H:ED) e 21,490,000 % & of sportswear and
(“EN (Yifeng)") (Notes (b)) garments
FEREEEDR
KR
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17. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 17. AMBLARAZRE®

Notes: Ht 5
(a) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to (a) ERERETERY ﬂ T R B
attend or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus B HEERRX @ gESGLERE
assets in a return of capital in a winding-up (other than the nominal BA K 11_: FRREEAREREM
amount paid up or credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of MHpEE(ERBEREARAH
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been distributed to the 100,000,000,000,000% 7t % Ik T 2
holders of the ordinary shares of the company in such winding-up). REBERESSAEAR - EERNO
ZHRIARIIEL RS @ ER

Gh) o
(b) YM (Shantou), YY (Shantou), Maitex PRC, KE (Shantou), Hung Eagle (b) ¥ E:EJ CHECLEE) BREE -
Garment and EN (Yifeng) are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises SECOLSE) BREEREX(EY)
under the PRC law. RBEABEEPIEMIIEABERE -
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. LRFmEMBARAARRMERE -
. 4
18. Inventories 18. &
Group
rEE

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET FHET
Raw materials =R R 79,010 75,143
Work in progress ER® M5 62,410 36,412
Finished goods B2 A% G 50,829 24,699
192,249 136,254
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19.

20.

110

Accounts and Bills Receivables 19. ERERRERE
The Group’s accounts and bills receivables mainly relate to a few AEBCZRUREFREZBEFEZEET
recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit period is generally ROURGEERINEFEMB-EEH
for a period of 30 to 45 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict — MR B30KRE45 KR AEBENE K
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise the credit risk. EBEEINFTBREEZTER  BEE
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the management of the BEiEdlE REKFE - @ERNN 2 4
Group. The accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing. HEAEBEEETHERM - EUER
REEBRREERR
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables as at the end of BEREHRZEREREZERIE
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BEAMOEKRESTOT
Group
rE
2011 2010
—Z2——F —E-ZTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FE T
Within 30 days 30K A 67,091 109,414
31 to 60 days 31 KRE60K 12,877 40,101
61 to 90 days 61 KE90K 659 6,480
Over 90 days 90K M £ 727 572
81,354 156,567
The above balances are neither past due nor impaired. The financial N E#ESRITEa B RFEE BEEN
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which FREBEFREHR AN SR EE 5
there was no recent history of default. 7 4 R B ED 8% o
Cash and Cash Equivalents 200 ReRHALEEER
Group Company
rE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F ZT-%TF ZEB——f ZT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET FER FET
Cash and bank balances Rae MRITESF 183,037 324,692 269 799
Time deposits with original REZHBEBES
maturity of over three months =@ Rz EBER - 3,443 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEER 183,037 328,135 269 799

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited
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20.

21.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$86,606,000 (2010: HK$192,461,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Accounts and Bills Payables

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

20.

21.

HERBEESEEEH®W

REBEBHR AEBUARE
TARBDHEHNR e RBTE
1F 586,606,000 (= & — T F:
192,461,000 7C) c ARBETNBERK
BREHMEYR AMBEPBEKED
SNEE B IR RO DA I 4 08 - & [E A B
EEBRT AEBEERESBERE
WIBINEXEB Z2BRTBRARBERA
Hpth 5 # o

FR|THRESLEARITFERMNE
ZEHERRBMAE - AR BIZAK
ReRTEMEH-—BE=FANEHRE
B 77500 X0 B AR A B E B AF ORI X
MIAB - RITHEBDIFRRAEE
BT HR RERFL 8k 2 R1T -

EHERERE

RBEARZENERREBRIESE
SERHMKRESNMT

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E2—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within 90 days CFNG! 70,921 62,400
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 1,054 1,396
181 to 365 days 181K £365K 73 189
Over 365 days 365K A E 1,780 2,287
73,828 66,272

The accounts and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 45-day terms.

BNEREREBEARBER FEH
— MR BA5K o
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22.

23.

112

Banking Facilities 22. RITERAEE
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by R-E——F=ZA=Z+—H &%
the following: ZIRITEREENTHSEIERER
(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to the extent (i) K A \) %2 3 BA 46,000,000 JT
of HK$46,000,000 (2010: HK$46,000,000) of which an REZAFRER(ZCZE-FF:
aggregate amount of HK$2,410,000 was utilised; and 46,000,000 L) - HHPE A&
#£2,410,000% 7T+ &
(ii) unlimited corporate guarantees executed by four (2010: four) (ii) RABPER(ZDE—ZF : [
subsidiaries of the Company. R)MBRAZLNEREA
AR -
In addition, the Company was granted an unsecured banking facility gboh - KRB/ —FIRITHIGE — B
from a bank to the extent of HK$350,000,000. As at the end of the 42 i 38 B X §8350,000,00078 JT ° A R
reporting period, this banking facility remained unutilised. Subsequent EHR ZBEEREDASE - DR
to the end of the reporting period, the Company had drawn down LHE AR ERMBETERE
certain bank loans with aggregate amount of US$26,900,000 A #£26,900,0002 T ( #7209,820,000 %5
(approximately HK$209,820,000) which bears interest from 1.05% to L) FEENF1.05%FE1.50%
1.50% per annum.
Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables 23. EsrEEGRHEMEENRKE
Group Company
rEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B ——F —T—FTF ZJ-—_F T _FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH& T TET FHE T
Deferred income B FE WA 1,875 1,763 - -
Other payables H b & 5OIE 56,602 32,925 - -
Accruals &t & A 35,687 23,747 452 317
94,164 58,435 452 317

Other payables of the Group at 31 March 2011 included a subsidy of
RMB7,811,000 (approximately HK$9,189,000) (2010: RMB9,320,000
(approximately HK$10,591,000)) received from the Yifeng
Government for the construction cost of basic infrastructure to be
incurred by the Group for the development of Jiangxi Site. During the
year, an amount of RMB1,509,000 (approximately HK$1,775,000)
was utilised and has been offset against the construction cost.

Eagle Nice (International) Holdings Limited

ExEBE)ZERERAR

REFBR-_T——F=ZA=+—BHW
Hofth e SRIE R E N E L BT AT U ER
A R #7,811,0007T (499,189,000 7T )
(ZZT—ZF: AR ¥9,320,0007T (4
10,591,000 JL) ) B - {E R A &K H
A IR ERERBEERAE -
FR- B A ARMI5090007T (4
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities 24, EEMRIEBBAE
Group rE
Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
Accelerated profits on
tax Asset PRC
depreciation revaluation  subsidiaries Total
R AR
& KR 5K 5
BERE EEEfR ZRENH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
(restated) (restated)
(£71)) (7))
At 1 April 2009 RZETNFENA—AH 20 13,423 3,355 16,798

Deferred tax debited to the consolidated F R R iAW HRINE

income statement during the year ZIEER A (K 5E9)

(Note 9) 473 47 5,384 5,904
Deferred tax debited to equity FRAREARNRZ

during the year 5 JE I8 - 1,569 - 1,569
Exchange realignment PE i 3 & - (147) - (147)
At 31 March 2010 and RZTE—TF

1 April 2010 ZA=+—-Hk

—Z-TFMA—H 493 14,892 8,739 24,124

Deferred tax debited to the consolidated F R R 44 WX B

income statement during the year ZEERIE
(Note 9) (Fff5£9) 324 83 5,185 5,592
Deferred tax debited to equity FAREARANMKR 2
during the year EIERE - 3,048 - 3,048
Withholding tax on repatriation RN E D ERF
on earnings from subsidiaries in the PRC [ | 7 78 40 7% - - (3,079) (3,079)
Exchange realignment BE 3, o & - 520 - 520
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
ZA=+—H 817 18,543 10,845 30,205
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. In estimating
the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made assessment
based on the factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group's operations in the

foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2011, there were no significant unrecognised deferred
tax liabilities (2010: Nil) for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries expected to
be distributed, after considering the above-mentioned factors, in the

foreseeable future.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$8,530,000 (2010:
HK$6,916,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the company in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of those
losses as the aforesaid company has had no taxable profits for some

time.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

25. Issued Capital

24. EEMEEE &

R B OL - R BKBE AR S 2 S
FRELEMAIBREESTIR 2K
B HEAKI0%TEMT - ZRER
TFENF-A-BAER XERAR =
ET+EFET AT —HRBZEHN-
B ARERIINEREE ZAEE
BRI BB HEAQ AR EELEmE
MBBER - NREBZERABE R5%
K 10% ° FE fiy 5t 5% 5 o B K fE AR S Y
BRAEAR_—_ZTZTNF-—H -HBHEREL
#) 2 ) 78 5k 3 B S PT AR B0 TR A0 B
K EFETHEEREREREAE
EEEEARARMTBTEARLER
TERE-

RZTB-——F=A=+—H KERE
LA RRZR ERRERR X EBAR
/NI N NCIRERGR S - N
B 7 FE A TR TR A B OKOR #E R R ST
BEBECE-TF 8-

AREBREBELEZHEBEERE
8,530,000 ;L (= ZF —ZF 4 : 6,916,000
BT)AERAAEREEEEEN
ARAEERBHEF - AR AT A F
EE—BSHEERV S BAiml
BRZEEEBREERIBEE -

ZNVNSIICIEE O iS4 @ - e
BRER-

25. BEEITRA

Company
KA F
2011 2010
—E-—F —E—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Authorised: ETE R
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 A% & A% ™ 1&
HK$0.01 each 0.01B Lz & imk 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITEERE:
499,680,000 ordinary shares of 499,680,000 % & f% M &
HK$0.01 each 0.01B Lz Timk 4,997 4,997
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26.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group and customers of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 6 August 2003 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in

issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to independent non-executive directors’ approval in advance. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue

at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than five years from date of the offer of the share options or the
expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

26.
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The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer of the share
options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted under the Scheme as at 31 March
2011 or up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
aggregate of the nominal value of the share capitals of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the existing
1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, subsidiaries registered
in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their profits after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve, until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of their
respective registered capitals. Subject to certain restrictions as set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve may be
used to offset against accumulated losses.
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27. Reserves (continued) 27. &
Company KD F]
Retained
Share profits/
premium Capital (accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
Notes & 7 BEuN/
P % Bk EXRfE (Bt ER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FEL TEL THEL
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNEMA—A 472,586 43,088 6,416 522,090
Profit and total comprehensive income ERRME2ERE
for the year k) 10 S = 65,001 65,001
Final 2009 dividend ZZENERARE 11 - - (59,962) (59,962)
Interim 2010 dividend “Z-ZERBARE 11 - - (64,958) (64,958)
At 31 March 2010 and R-_E-%
1 April 2010 s e =4
“T-TE¥MA-H 472,586 43,088 (53,503) 462,171
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMR2ERE
for the year k) 10 - - 103,784 103,784
Final 2010 dividend “Z-ZERBKE 11 - - (34,978) (34,978)
Interim 2011 dividend ZE-—FhBRE 11 - - (59,962) (59,962)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%
“A=1+—-H 472,586 43,088 (44,659) 471,015

The capital reserve of the Company represents the excess of the

then consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital reserve may

be distributed to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

ARARIEAFREARFRBEEHRMN
KEHBARERNGEEEFE
BHARR SR AMET ZRAHEE
ZEBR - REHERERARE BEX
EEATDIKTARRRE  HERERE
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28.

29.

118

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

(i)

(i)

Major non-cash transaction
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group has the following major non-cash transaction:

During the year, deposits for property, plant and equipment
of HK$4,192,000 (2010: HK$2,177,000) were transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon acceptance by and
delivery to the Group (Note 15).

28. MEBEERERKWFE

i) EBHFEERH
B AN R R H A 243 BT R BB S
AEEEUTEEHFRSRS

RER - 4,192,0008 T (=F —
T4 2,177,000 7T) 2 ) % -
BMEMEEZEESR AL B
MERNAEERNGEEREY
¥ WEK&EMFEIS) -

Deregistration of subsidiaries (i) BETMHEQR
2011
—_E——fF
HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: EHETISENEEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFE e REMEWKIE 30
Accounts payable FE 5 BR 1R (67)
Other payables and accruals H b JE A~ FRIE R B ST RIE (221)
Tax payable J& 1< Bt IR (6,666)
Realisation of exchange reserves EHHEE 2 #R (11,739)
(18,663)
Gain on deregistration (note 5) B8 o Mt Uk &= (BT 5E5) 18,663

There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the deregistration of subsidiaries during the
current year.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities not
provided for at the end of the reporting period (2010: Nil).

As at 31 March 2011, the Company has given corporate guarantees
to banks to the extent of HK$46,000,000 (2010: HK$46,000,000) for

banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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30. Operating Lease Arrangements 30, REMEERH
The Group leases certain of its office, factories and staff quarters AEBERBELKEHERHFHEERAET
under operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms RAE - BMEREIGBE #E2H
ranging from one to two years. BN —ZEZF1F-
At 31 March 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease R-_ZE——F=Z=A=+—H8B K&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as RAAHECEHEE T 2 KRR &K
follows: HEEBEARTIHREN:
2011 2010
—E-——fF -
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Within one year —F R 2,729 2,571
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEZELIF(BREERMSF) - 2,544
2,729 5,115
31. Commitments 31. &¥E
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 30 Br | BT FE30FF 5 2 48 & M & R
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end Gy REBRBEH R ZENEAED
of the reporting period: K
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FER FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI OB ARBEE:
Construction of factories and purchases BRIAEB ZHE R
of machinery and equipment for the EEME N RME
Jiangxi Project (i) 83,966 -
Renovation of factories for the Indonesia R {EENEE B 2 HE
Project (ii) 33,757 -
Purchases of items of property, BEKSE REAR
plant and equipment B 563 2,009
Renovation of factories HEHE 1,354 1,956
119,640 3,965
Authorised, but not contracted for: EREBRETHN:
Investment in the Jiangxi Project ERIAIER (i) 103,797 81,502
Investment in the Indonesia Project HEREEIER (i) - 65,951
103,797 147,453
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31. Commitments (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 22 January 2010, (the “First
Investment agreement”) entered into between the Group and the Yifeng
Government, the total investment cost for EN (Yifeng) was US$12 million
(approximately HK$93,600,000) which has been approved by the directors
on 15 January 2010.

During the year, on 26 May 2010, a new investment agreement (the
“Revised Investment Agreement”) was signed between the Group and
the Yifeng Government, to increase the total investment from US$12
million (approximately HK$93,600,000) to US$25,000,000 (approximately
HK$195,000,000).

On 21 March 2011, the directors further approved the amendment to the
Memorandum of Association of EN (Yifeng) to extend the total investment
to US$50 million (approximately HK$390,000,0000).

As at 31 March 2010, an aggregate amount of HK$12,098,000 had been
incurred and the remaining balance of HK$81,502,000 was recognised as a
commitment.

As at 31 March 2011, an aggregate amount of HK$202,237,000

had been incurred and the remaining balance of HK$83,966,000 and
HK$103,797,000 were recognised as “Contracted, but not provided for”
commitment and “Authorised, but not contracted for” commitment
respectively.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in June 2011, the directors
estimated the investment cost for phase-one of the Jiangxi Project will
increase to approximately HK$400,000,000.

(ii) The total investment cost for EN Indonesia was US$12 million (approximately
HK$93,600,000) which has been approved by the directors on 12 January
2010. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had incurred HK$27,649,000 and
the remaining balance of HK$65,951,000 was recognised as a commitment.

As at 31 March 2011, the commitment in relation to the Indonesia Project
had been disclosed under “Contracted, but not provided for” commitment
above.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in June 2011, the directors
estimated the investment cost for phase-one of the Indonesia Project to be
approximately HK$200,000,000.

The Company did not have any significant commitments at the end of
the reporting period (2010: Nil).
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(ii)
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1ts (continued)

32. Related Party Transactions 3. BEAETXRES
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) 173 f Bk E A \*E‘B 2 B 7 5l
financial statements, the Group had the following material Z 2 5 ?l\/'_$ & ;Ei 1 7 2
transactions with related parties during the year: BATETEARSMT
2011 2010
= —F-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FH T
Subcontracting fees payable to related EXNBAERAZ
companies (note) A ' (M) 6,291 20,357
Note: B &

The subcontracting fees paid to Pro Kingtex Vietnam Co. Limited and /7 (1|
BEHEXAER AR, both of which are the subsidiaries of Yue Yuen Industrial
(Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 00551), were made according to the terms
similar to those offered by the Group’s non-related subcontractors.

The related party transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
during the year as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were conducted
in the ordinary course of business of the Group.

(b) The directors are the key management personnel of the
Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in note 7 to

the financial statements.

# B B Jy 3 14 FPro Kingtex Vietnam
Co. Limited R F Il EHH KX AR A A
(MRH BBV TIEEER)ER QAR
7R 8% : 00551) Z M8 A R)) - W2 R
7N 5 B 3E B R B R T AR 1 2 SR ALK
T 0

FRN - BEATRSGEKETRAE

VUAEREZFHEMERS -

EERR LARFHRAEEZ —
REBEXRBBEPET -

EEZRAEEZTRZEREA
B-REFHFBRUBH
R RE7HER
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short
term deposits. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables and accounts and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no interest-bearing borrowings, and believes its
exposure to interest rate risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from a substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating
units in US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from the exposure of US$ and RMB. As the foreign currency
risks generated from the sales and purchases can be set off with each
other, the Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is minimal.
It is the policy of the Group to continue maintaining the balance of
its sales and purchases in the same currency. However, as the Group’s
financial statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be
a translation credit to exchange revaluation reserve as a result of the
RMB appreciation. The majority of the Group’s operating assets are
located in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors the foreign exchange exposures and
will consider hedging the significant foreign currency exposures should
the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
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0
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 33. MBEKREEZEEREREK
Policies (continued) (#8)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
exchange rate net profit
ExREH A # R 18 0
(&) ORl 2)
HK$'000
FHET
2011 —B-——F
If HK$ weakens against RMB MAETE ARKRE 5% 237
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WMETHARBHAE (5%) (237)
2010 —E-ZF
If HK$ weakens against RMB MAETHE ARKRE 5% 80
If HK$ strengthens against RMB WBETHARBHAE (5%) (80)
Liquidity risk RBELER

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts and bills
receivables) and the projected cash flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash and available banking
facilities. The directors have reviewed the Group’s working capital
and capital expenditure requirements and determined that the Group
has no significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was less than one year.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise

cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

AEEFRAEFERBESZRITA
ERESERZEAR -ZBITAE
BT AR E E (&R K
REBIZINHBER UREEHFKZ
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EERK
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33.

34.

35.

124

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total current
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Group’s policy is to keep
the current ratio above 1.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to
the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and balances
in the financial statements have been revised to comply with the

new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified

and restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment, and a third statement of financial position as at
1 April 2009 has been presented.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 23 June 2011.
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